
 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA 
KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

October 23, 2023 5:00 p.m. 
Van Deusen Room, Central Library   

315 S. Rose St. Kalamazoo, MI 49009 
Click here to join the meeting 

or by calling 
+1 917-933-5523  

Then enter meeting code: 
523636765# 

Approval of Agenda   
                                                                                           
I. ROLL CALL 

 
II. RECOGNITIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
III. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

 
IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Minutes of the Meeting of September 18, 2023 
B. Minutes of the Meeting of September 25, 2023 
C. Personnel Items (acceptance of consent calendar) 
 

V. FINANCIAL REPORT 
A. Financial Reports for the Period Ending September 30, 2023 
 

VI. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Reports 
A.  Presentation of Audited Financial Statements – Gabridge & Company 
B.  Library Statistics Dashboard – Jim Clarey/ILS Specialist 
 

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
A. Finance and Budget Committee 
B. Personnel Committee 
C. Fund Development Committee  
D. Director’s Building Advisory Committee 
E. Ad hoc Bylaw Review Committee 
 
 

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. Director’s Report 
B. Executive search firm rubric 

 
IX. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

 
X. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YjdhZWJjYWQtNGYyMy00ZjU2LWEyNzMtZDljM2U2MjQ5YmI5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2243667844-e654-4247-8a0d-9f830110ffa6%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2261d557b5-cab8-42e3-bc22-b73efc9af4b8%22%7d
tel:+19179335523,,523636765
http://www.kpl.gov/


  
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 
Beginning January 1, 2022, The KPL Board of Trustees Meetings will be held in-person to comply 
with the Michigan Open Meetings Act. Safety precautions will be in place to adjust to pandemic 
circumstances. Meetings will continue to be streamed virtually, with attendees having the ability 
to provide public comments in person and online during those points on the agenda. In person 
and online public commenters have a time limit of three minutes.  
 
Online Public Comment Guidelines  
During “Public Comment” online participants will have the opportunity to address the Board and 
will be unmuted. There will be an opportunity to speak at the beginning of the meeting and at the 
end of the meeting. Public commenters are asked to state their name, address, and to keep 
comments to three minutes during each Public Comment period. To provide public comment, 
please use the following tools in the Zoom meeting. Use the “Raise Hand” (Press *9 for phone 
audio) to be called upon by the Board Chair, please state your name and address. Use the “Q&A” 
window with your name and public comment and the Board Chair or designee will read it out 
loud. The Board Chair will ask if there are any remaining participants who would like to address 
the Board before continuing. 

 



IV. A. 

14 
 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: September 18, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Community Room, Oshtemo Branch 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, Denise Miller 

 
Absent: Lisa Godfrey 

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

A person who identified as a member of the non-profit community thanked the Board for 
their work. 

III. BOARD DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP 
Dr. Karika Parker of Onyx Executive Leadership Consulting led the Board through the 
development of a timeline for the Request for Proposal for an executive search firm and 
director search. 
 

IV. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 
Trustees present thanked Dr. Parker for the workshop. 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 8:15 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   
                                                                          Secretary 



IV. B. 

15 
 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: September 25, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Library 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Lisa Godfrey, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, 
Denise Miller 

 
Absent: Linda Mah 

 
II. RECOGNITIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Trustee Williams, on behalf of the board, recognized Theodore Gill on receiving the Amanda 
Green Scholarship and completing his Master’s in Library Science.  

 
III. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

Janice Snell, a patron of the Library, requested the board collaborate with the Michigan 
Library Association to ban guns at Kalamazoo Public Libraries. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Minutes of the Meeting of August 15, 2023 
B. Minutes of the Meeting of August 28, 2023 
C. Minutes of the Meeting of August 30, 2023 
D. Personnel Items: Trustee Miller acknowledged employee new hires, employee 

separations, and employee anniversaries within the organization. 

MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND E. GREENMAN WRIGHT SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO 
ACCEPT THE CONSENT CALENDARS FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST ENDING AUGUST 30, 2023. 

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

V. FINANCIAL REPORT 
A. Financial Reports for the Month Ending August 31, 2023 
 
Recommendation: Interim Director Terry New recommended the Board accept the Financial 
Reports for the month ending August 31, 2023. 
 



IV. B. 

16 
 

MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND K. JOCK SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE 
FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE MONTH ENDING AUGUST 31, 2023. 
 
Discussion: Nnamdi Dike, Head of Budget and Finance, gave a summary highlighting the 
August Financial Reports. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; D. Miller – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; 
E. Greenman Wright – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

VI. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Recommendations 
 
A. Patron Services Librarian position reclassification 

 
Recommendation: Interim Director Terry New recommended Board approval of the 
reclassification of the KPLA Patron Services Librarian - Fiction, Periodicals, and 
Databases from a Librarian to a Librarian Specialist position. 
 
Discussion:  There was no discussion.  
 
MOTION: J. WILLIAMS MOVED AND D. MILLER SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO APPROVE 
THE PATRON SERVICES LIBRARIAN POSITION RECLASSIFICATION. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; D. Miller – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – 
yes; E. Greenman Wright – yes.   

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

B.  Maintenance Technician position reclassification 
 
Recommendation: Interim Director Terry New recommended Board approval of the 
reclassification of the KPLSP Maintenance Technician position as a Supervisory-Technical 
position. 
 
Discussion:  Trustee Jock asked the Interim Director New if this recommendation was 
also reviewed by the Finance and Budget Committee, and the Personnel Committee. 
Interim Director New informed Trustee Jock this recommendation was reviewed by 
those committees, and also by KPLSP Mutual Concerns. President Roth asked how did 
Interim Director New receive this recommendation. Interim Director New stated that 
this recommendation came from Human Resources. 
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND D. MILLER SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO APPROVE 
THE MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN POSITION RECLASSIFICATION. 
 



IV. B. 

17 
 

Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; D. Miller – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – 
yes; E. Greenman Wright – yes.   

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

C.  Marketing & Communications Manager Reclassification/Organization Chart Revision 
 
Recommendation: Interim Director Terry New recommended Board approval of the 
reclassification of the Marketing & Communications Manager position as Administrator 
and the resulting change to the organizational chart. 
 
Discussion:  There was no discussion. 
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND K. JOCK SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE 
MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER RECLASSIFICATION/ ORGANIZATION 
CHART REVISION. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; D. Miller – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – 
yes; E. Greenman Wright – yes.   

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

D. Texas Township Contract 
Recommendation: Interim Director New recommended Board approval of 
recommendation of Texas Township Contract. 
 
Discussion: There was no discussion.  
 
MOTION: K. JOCK MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE 
RECOMMENDATION OF THE TEXAS TOWNSHIP CONTRACT. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; D. Miller – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – 
yes; E. Greenman Wright – yes.   

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
Reports 

 
A. Banned Books Week  

 
Library Assistant Associate Tady Lewis and Librarian Lead Amanda Stover gave a 
presentation on Banned Books Week. They discussed the importance of holding Banned 
Books Week, through their research they found that the state of Michigan ranked second in 
the nation in attempt to restrict access to books in 2022. Also, the number of books being 
challenged in the U.S. has drastically risen by 38 percent. They discussed how Kalamazoo 
Public Libraries are responding to this through library programming of events, book clubs, 
and displays at the library.  
 



IV. B. 

18 
 

B. 2022-2023 Strategic Plan report  
 
Community Engagement Department Head Kevin King gave a presentation on the results of 
the 2022-2023 Strategic Plan. The strategic plan covered the organizational health goals, 
advancing equity and inclusion goals, inspiring literacy, learning, and engagement goals. This 
presentation included benchmarks that were set for the fiscal year 2022 and 2023, and 
which benchmarks were met, and which benchmarks were not met. Department Head King 
stated that this current strategic plan will be implemented and carried on into the next year.   
 

C. Summer Reading Wrap-up  
 
Librarian Specialist Milan Orozco gave a presentation on the results of the Kalamazoo Public 
Library 2023 Summer Reading Challenge. Librarian Specialist Orozco stated this year theme 
was All Together Now, which focused on educating youth that everyone’s actions affect one 
another. Librarian Specialist Orozco went over how participating members of the Summer 
Reading Challenge could win their badges and prizes. Data was presented that the number 
of Summer Readers that participated this year was almost equal to the year 2019, before 
the pandemic. Librarian Specialist Orozco’s data also showed that the age bracket of 
preschoolers had the highest number of participants in the Summer Reading Challenge. 
However, in the age bracket of school-age kids they were the highest number of participants 
who earned badges. The Summer Reading Challenge gave away 7,582 books this year.  
 
 

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A. Finance and Budget Committee – Trustee Godfrey stated the committee did meet and 

discussed the recommendations for reclassification. 
 

B. Personnel Committee – Trustee Williams stated the committee did meet and discussion 
topics were the Director Search and the event planned for board and staff in October. 
 

C. Fund Development Committee – No meeting. 
 

D. Director’s Building Advisory Committee –No meeting. 
  

E. Ad hoc Bylaw Review Committee – No meeting. 
 

 
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Director’s Report 
Interim Director New reported on the following topics: 
 

• Interim Director New reported the Oshtemo ADA parking improvements project has recently 
concluded. This project installed the circle drive drop box, and this addition elevates the patron 
experience by providing a convenient means to drop off materials, especially during challenging 
weather conditions or after the sun has set. 



IV. B. 

19 
 

 
• Interim Director New stated the space study process has been initiated by sending out a request 

for information (RFI) to several key groups to assess interest. These groups included the 
National Organization of Minority Architects, architects that the Library has previously 
collaborated with, and architect recommendations given to the Library. And the RFI process will 
end at the end of October, and there will be a review of the architects who expressed interest in 
the RFI.  
 

• The annual process of distributing total compensation statements to salaried staff is being 
implemented again. This departmental goal was completed by HR Specialist Amy Clark.  
 

• KPL received an award from Loaves & Fishes for the work the social services and security team 
does with distributing emergency food kits to patrons in need. 
 

• The Library will be honored by the Daughters of the American Revolution for their 150 years of 
outstanding efforts and literacy promotion, and the award will be presented in the Daughters of 
the American Revolution October chapter meeting. Trustee Jock will be representing the library 
at that meeting. 
 

• The Oshtemo Branch has been asked to host an after-hours program for the deaf and hard of 
hearing community on October 14. The “Deaf Night Out” event on October 14 will feature crafts 
using our Creativebug database and opportunities for patrons to get to know one another. 
Community Engagement Intern Sarah Van Eck initiated and organized this event. 
 

• Kevin King facilitated a public conversation with jazz icon, Branford Marsalis, on September 18 
at Central in partnership with the Kalamazoo Symphony Orchestra (KSO). Over 50 members of 
the community listened to Marsalis, Sonya B. and Sean Hollins, and Edward Callahan talk about 
their storybook collaboration JAMMIN’ IN KALAMAZOO. While serving a residency for the KSO, 
Marsalis wrote music for the book to be performed in KPL and KSO’s Musical Storytime 
collaboration. 
 

• Children’s Room staff and Facilities Management have worked hard in the Children's Room to 
give the room better flow and provide better sightlines. A large bank of shelves was moved and 
reworked the picture books. Many people have commented on how nice it looks and how it 
opens sightlines in the room.  
 

• Geek Fest will be on Saturday, October 14th and this year there are two major headliners for this 
event. They are YouTube content creator DM Scotty and award-winning author Mark Oshiro.  
 

• There has been an increase in usage of Creativebug and Freegal. The is hope that the use of 
these services will increase from Marketing and Communications advertising them.  

 
B. Board recordings 

 



IV. B. 

20 
 

• Interim Director New stated that board meeting recording will be available upon request to 
patrons. The Library will archive these video recordings for a year.  
 

C. Discussion of RFP for the Search Firm 
 

• President Roth stated to the Board of Trustees to please give any edits to the Request For 
Proposal (RFP) to Dr. Karika Parker by the end of the night. 
  

D. Executive Committee for the RFP 
 

• President Roth stated there should be an executive committee that handles the RFP process. 
President Roth proposed that this executive committee consist of the Vice President, the 
Treasurer, and the Secretary. Trustee Miller, Trustee Godfrey, and Trustee Williams agreed they 
would be on this committee.  
 
MOTION: C. ROTH MOVED AND E. GREENMAN WRIGHT SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO APPROVE 
THE CREATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FOR THE RFP. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; D. Miller – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
 

IX. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 
There were no persons who addressed the board.  
 

X. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 
• J. Williams stated that she is excited about the progress that the Library is making 

on its strategic goals, and the Board Development work that Dr. Parker is doing with 
the board. Trustee Williams acknowledged the hard work the staff is doing for the 
Library. Also, she thanked Interim Director New for her hard work. 
 

• K. Jock applauded the amazing work that was happening in the Library. She stated 
the Director’s Report was fantastic, and that it was truly a treat to attend the Staff 
Breakfast and engage with the staff in a casual setting.  
  

• L. Godfrey stated the Michigan Library Association has both a legislative committee 
and a lobbying firm, which has been very active in advocating for the removal of 
guns in libraries. 

• E. Greeman Wright stated how she is really proud of the innovation occurring at the 
Library. Trustee Greenman Wright stated she was happy the Library received an 
award from Loaves and Fishes. She stated that she is elated the Library is pivoting to 
meet the needs of the community in new ways, not just through books.  And that 



IV. B. 

21 
 

the Library is shifting to see our community as whole people. And the results in this 
strategic plan are exciting to see.  
  

• Trustee Miller thanked the staff for the wonderful programs they create and 
implement. Trustee Miller also patrons for talking about banning guns in the library. 
She also stated she is excited to continue to do board development workshops with 
the board.  
 

• President Roth echoed thanks to the staff and patrons. She also stated that she 
thinks the Library is going in the right direction and for that she is thankful.  
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 6:41 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   
                                                                          Secretary 



 
 

V. A.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMO 
 
 
TO: Library Trustees FROM: Terry New, Interim 

Library Director 
    
RE: Financial Reports for the Month 

Ending September 30, 2023 
DATE: October 23, 2023 

 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
I recommend the Board accept the Financial Reports for the month ending September 30, 
2023. 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
Notes to the reports are included for your information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 Lisa Godfrey, Treasurer 

 



 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 

Financial Reports for September 2023 
 

 

 
Governmental Pooled Funds, Sources and Uses and Combined Balance Sheet 

 

The Library’s Governmental Pooled Funds totaled $14,627,364 at the end of September. Sources of 

funds totaled $212,380 during the month, highlighted by the receipt of local support attributable to the 

prior fiscal for the Capital Improvement Plan ($140,000). Uses of funds totaled $1,148,972 in September, 

led by Salaries & Wages, Prepaid Expenditures, and Materials. Combined Balance sheet activity was 

normal for the month. 

 

Revenue, Expenditures‐‐ General Operating Fund 

 

The library recognized $58,013 of General Fund revenue during September, led by interest income on 

short‐term investments. General Fund expenditures during the month totaled $1,204,837, slightly 

higher than normal due to a third employee pay period at the end of September. Cumulative General 

Fund expenditures through September have totaled $2,880,398, or 20% of the preliminary budget for 

the fiscal year. 

 

Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Capital Improvement Plan activity for the month was light, consisting of $6,737 of expenditures led by 

Computer Equipment & Peripherals (P#831, totaling $4,483). Major CIP encumbrances outstanding at 

the end of September include building and infrastructure projects at Central Library and Oshtemo 

branch (various CIP projects totaling $178,767). 

 

Special Revenue Fund 

 

Financial activity in the Special Revenue Fund during September included the receipt of $320 of 

donations, while recognized SRF expenditures totaled $8,380 during the month, led by the purchase of 

materials for Children under the Ready‐to‐Read program ($4,727). 

 

Endowment Fund 

 

Economic conditions improved during September, with the Bureau of Labor Statistics reporting the 

addition of 336,000 jobs during the month, and BLS revising the prior two monthly job reports to 

increase employment gains by another 119,000. BLS also reported the Consumer Price Index for the 

twelve‐month period through September stood at 3.7%, same as the previous month. The market value 

of the Library’s Endowment Fund at the end of September fell to $5,899,179, a decrease in value of 

$160,319 compared to fund value at the end of the previous month. A copy of page 1 of the monthly 

statement from the Library’s Charles Schwab One account is attached at the end of this internal financial 

report. 



BEGINNING CASH BALANCE * 15,563,955$      
* Including short‐term investments

SOURCES OF CASH:

 Property Tax Receipts 40$  
 IFT/CFT, PILOT, Other Tax Receipts ‐$

 State Aid/Renaissance Zone Reimbursement

 USF Refunds/Law Library Contract/District Ct. Penal Fines ‐$

 Interest Income 47,677$             

 Library Fines & Fees 2,953$                

 Other Sources: Gifts, Grants, & Reimbursements 161,390$           

 Other (CIP and SRF Revenue, etc.) 320$

   TOTAL SOURCES OF CASH 212,380$               

USES OF CASH:
 Salaries & Wages (660,311)$          

 Benefits (64,134)$            

 Materials (77,490)$            

 Operating Expenditures (24,223)$            

 Facilities (44,658)$            

 Technical Services (7,456)$              

 Purchased Services (77,384)$            

 Other (75,543)$            

 Capital Expenditures (4,625)$              

 Prepaid Expenditures (113,146)$          

   TOTAL USES OF CASH (1,148,972)$          

ENDING CASH 14,627,364$      

POOLED CASH ACCOUNTS:
Petty Cash 250$

Flagstar Bank General Checking 355,262$           

First National NOW & ACH Transfer Accounts 152,634$           

Consumers Credit Union ‐ Share Savings/Navia Admin 29,362$             

Consumers Credit Union ‐ General Checking 35,492$             

Midwest Business Exchange Account/Paypal 32,866$             

POOLED CASH ACCOUNTS 605,867$               

POOLED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS:

Flagstar Bank Premier Savings, MM & CD Accts 5,466,049$        

First National Bank ICS Savings, MM & CDs 6,603,290$        

Consumers Credit Union MM Acct & CD Accts 1,952,158$        

POOLED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS 14,021,497$         

TOTAL CASH AND POOLED INVESTMENTS 14,627,364$      

Kalamazoo Public Library
Sources and Uses of Funds

Governmental Pooled Funds Only
For the month ending September 30, 2023

September



Operating
Capital 

Improvement

Special 

Revenue
Endowment

Assets

     Cash & Equivalents

          Cash & Checking 5,186,098$              4,053,252$         377,647$           500,653$             

          Investments 5,010,367$              ‐$                     1,691,386$       5,398,527$          

     Total Cash & Equivalents 10,196,465$            4,053,252$         2,069,033$       5,899,179$          

     Accounts Receivable

          Accounts Receivable 58$                           ‐$                     120,360$           ‐$                      

     Total Accounts Receivable 58$                           ‐$                     120,360$           ‐$                      

     Taxes Receivable

          Taxes Receivable ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Taxes Receivable ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Other Assets

          Other Assets 360,613$                 ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

          Due to/from Other Funds ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Other Assets 360,613$                 ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

Total Assets 10,557,136$            4,053,252$         2,189,393$       5,899,179$          

Liabilities and Fund Balance

     Current Liabilities

          Accounts Payable ‐$                          ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

          Salaries Payable (994)$                        ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

          Retirement Payable 61,868$                    ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Total Current Liabilities 60,874$                    ‐$                     ‐$                   ‐$                      

     Long Term Liabilities

          Long Term Liabilities 190,000$                 ‐$                     345,000$           ‐$                      

     Total 190,000$                 ‐$                     345,000$           ‐$                      

     Net Assets

          Fund Balance 10,306,262$            4,053,252$         1,844,393$       5,899,179$          

     Total 10,306,262$            4,053,252$         1,844,393$       5,899,179$          

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 10,557,136$            4,053,252$         2,189,393$       5,899,179$          

As of September 30, 2023

Kalamazoo Public Library
Combined Balance Sheet

Office of Finance and Budget



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of September 2023

Activity Encumbrances PEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of September

1 - General Fund

Revenue

$40 $0 $13,740,379 $1,977 $13,738,402  0.0%          Property Taxes

$0 $0 $119,100 $8,202 $110,898  6.9%          Other Taxes

$2,953 $0 $19,000 $5,356 $13,644  28.2%          Fines and Fees

$0 $0 $148,000 $0 $148,000  0.0%          District Court Penal Fines

$3,000 $0 $173,000 $184,000 ($11,000)  106.4%          Local Support

$47,677 $0 $150,000 $103,123 $46,877  68.7%          Interest Income

$0 $0 $272,812 $2,740 $270,072  1.0%          State Aid and Reimbursements

$4,343 $0 $127,796 $13,471 $114,325  10.5%          Other

$58,013 $0 $14,750,087 $318,870 $14,431,217  2.2%Total Revenue

Expenditures

     Salaries

$84,339 $0 $846,645 $165,399 $681,246  19.5%          Administrator Salaries

$196,954 $0 $1,784,897 $391,932 $1,392,965  22.0%          Librarian Salaries

$113,827 $0 $1,052,715 $229,589 $823,126  21.8%          Supervisory Technical Salaries

$195,542 $0 $1,691,601 $388,275 $1,303,326  23.0%          Library Assistant Salaries

$25,667 $0 $295,000 $52,458 $242,542  17.8%          Interns

$72,504 $0 $741,960 $151,853 $590,107  20.5%          Hourly Staff

$12,590 $0 $89,482 $23,754 $65,728  26.5%          Substitute Salaries

$0 $0 ($35,000) $0 ($35,000)  0.0%          Vacancy Credit

$701,423 $0 $6,467,300 $1,403,260 $5,064,040  21.7%     Total

     Benefits

$75,403 $0 $1,068,015 $252,920 $815,095  23.7%          Employee Insurance

$76,794 $0 $1,043,630 $152,935 $890,695  14.7%          Retirement

$51,532 $0 $493,934 $102,702 $391,232  20.8%          Employer FICA-Medicare

$226 $0 $102,044 $11,532 $90,512  11.3%          Other Benefits

$203,955 $0 $2,707,623 $520,090 $2,187,533  19.2%     Total

     Materials

$29,288 $0 $596,550 $86,477 $510,073  14.5%          Adult Books

$14,430 $0 $147,000 $31,643 $115,357  21.5%          Juvenile Books

$434 $0 $52,860 $3,541 $49,319  6.7%          Periodicals

$31,043 $0 $432,000 $63,731 $368,269  14.8%          Audio-Visual Material

$0 $0 $216,430 $23,401 $193,029  10.8%          Digital Materials

$392 $0 $35,000 $3,595 $31,405  10.3%          Library of Things

$75,587 $0 $1,479,840 $212,388 $1,267,452  14.4%     Total

     Facilities

$446 $0 $86,000 $1,495 $84,505  1.7%          Fuel

$20,000 $0 $191,390 $45,718 $145,672  23.9%          Electricity

$1,753 $0 $13,600 $5,635 $7,965  41.4%          Water

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 1 of 3



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of September 2023

Activity Encumbrances PEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of September

$10,499 $0 $90,000 $19,077 $70,923  21.2%          Custodial Supplies

$1,209 $13,920 $54,500 $2,369 $52,131  4.3%          Grounds Maintenance

$446 $0 $8,500 $1,307 $7,193  15.4%          Vehicle Maintenance

$9,916 ($1,923) $139,700 $21,846 $117,854  15.6%          Building Repair

$6,677 $0 $133,700 $41,644 $92,056  31.1%          Building Operations

$50,946 $11,997 $717,390 $139,091 $578,299  19.4%     Total

     Operating Expenses

$9,260 $0 $143,150 $19,316 $123,834  13.5%          Supplies

$6,105 $0 $103,355 $13,891 $89,464  13.4%          Misc. Operating Expenses

$7,829 $0 $36,500 $10,411 $26,089  28.5%          Postage & Freight

$4,461 $0 $46,000 $12,529 $33,471  27.2%          Rent

$0 $0 $47,000 $1,646 $45,354  3.5%          Processing Supplies

$27,654 $0 $376,005 $57,794 $318,211  15.4%     Total

     Technical Services

$0 $0 $16,000 $0 $16,000  0.0%          F&E Repair & Maintenance

$2,981 $0 $400,443 $207,371 $193,072  51.8%          Software as Service

$7,066 $0 $189,065 $27,174 $161,891  14.4%          Software Licensing & Maint.

$8,357 $0 $155,040 $23,755 $131,285  15.3%          Telecommunications

$1,723 $0 $91,809 $39,405 $52,404  42.9%          Cataloging & Processing

$20,127 $0 $852,357 $297,705 $554,652  34.9%     Total

     Purchased Services

$21,277 $0 $446,052 $77,187 $368,865  17.3%          Security

$2,373 $0 $111,216 $7,195 $104,021  6.5%          Insurance

$325 $0 $50,000 $1,025 $48,975  2.1%          Legal Services

$31,271 $0 $128,600 $33,680 $94,920  26.2%          Printing Services

$1,095 $0 $40,000 $2,980 $37,020  7.5%          Advertising

$22,478 $309 $343,209 $51,967 $291,242  15.1%          Contracted Services

$78,819 $309 $1,119,077 $174,034 $945,043  15.6%     Total

     Other Expenditures

$27,366 ($2,280) $427,100 $53,280 $373,820  12.5%          Programming

$12,334 $0 $50,000 $12,334 $37,666  24.7%          Tax Charge Backs

$3,032 $0 $68,260 $5,009 $63,251  7.3%          Staff Development

$3,575 $0 $122,410 $5,376 $117,034  4.4%          Travel & Conference

$18 $0 $12,000 $37 $11,963  0.3%          Board Expenses

$46,325 ($2,280) $679,770 $76,036 $603,734  11.2%     Total

$1,204,837 $10,026 $14,399,362 $2,880,398 $11,518,964  20.0%Total

Transfers

     Transfers In

          Transfers from other funds $0 $0 ($152,984) $0 ($152,984)  0.0%

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 2 of 3



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of September 2023

Activity Encumbrances PEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of September

$0 $0 ($152,984) $0 ($152,984)  0.0%     Total Transfers In

     Transfers Out

          Transfers to other funds $0 $0 $528,728 $0 $528,728  0.0%

$0 $0 $528,728 $0 $528,728  0.0%     Total

$0 $0 $375,744 $0 $375,744  0.0%Total

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 3 of 3



Monthly 

Activity

Monthly 

Encumbrances
Activity YTD

Carryover 

Balance

Preliminary 

Estimate 

Budget

Balance 

Remaining

3 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan Fund

REVENUE

          Other Local Gifts & Grants

               800 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       140,000$              140,000$               

               830 ‐ Computer & Technology Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               884 ‐ Digital Lab (Hub) Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

     Total Revenue ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       140,000$              140,000$               

          State Aid & Reimbursements

               800 ‐ Share of Local Community Stabilization Fund ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       471,272$              471,272$               

Total Revenue & State Aid ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       611,272$              611,272$               

EXPENDITURES

     Furnishings

               810 ‐ Furnishings Reserve ‐$                         ‐$                        121,202$              50,000$                171,202$               

          Total Furnishings Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         121,202$              50,000$                198,772$               

          Central Library

               803 ‐ Central Building Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        15,820$                ‐$                       15,820$                 

               812 ‐ Office Furnishings ‐ KPL Reorganization ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        3,264$                   ‐$                       3,264$                   

               813 ‐ Display/Public ‐ Central ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        68,277$                ‐$                       68,277$                 

               818 ‐ Circulation Room Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               861 ‐ IT Office Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               884F ‐ Digital Lab Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,500$                   ‐$                       4,500$                   

               889 ‐ Children's Room Table/Chairs ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        6,809$                   ‐$                       6,809$                   

               892 ‐ Local History Room Furniture ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,000$                   ‐$                       1,000$                   

               892F ‐ Local History Digitization ‐ FFE ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,371$                   ‐$                       1,371$                   

          Total Central Library ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        101,041$              ‐$                       101,041$               

          Branch Libraries

               815 ‐ Workspaces & Public Areas ‐ Oshtemo 1,367$                  ‐$                         3,572$                   30,968$                ‐$                       27,396$                 

               815CF ‐ Oshtemo Courtyard Furniture ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        10,000$                ‐$                       10,000$                 

               817 ‐ Workspaces & Public Areas ‐ WSQ ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        27,945$                ‐$                       27,945$                 

               881 ‐ Eastwood/Powell ‐ Furniture ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        42,535$                ‐$                       42,535$                 

          Total Branch Libraries 1,367$                  ‐$                         3,572$                   111,448$              ‐$                       107,876$               

          System‐Wide Projects

               811F ‐ Carpet Cleaning Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        3,212$                   ‐$                       3,212$                   

               814 ‐ Desks & Chairs ‐ Multiple Departments ‐$                      ‐$                         2,022$                   4,875$                   ‐$                       2,853$                   

               819 ‐ Materials Lending Machine Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        10,000$                ‐$                       10,000$                 

               898F ‐ Library of Things ‐‐ Furniture & Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        7,491$                   ‐$                       7,491$                   

          Total System‐Wide Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         2,022$                   25,578$                ‐$                       23,556$                 

     Total Furniture & Equipment 1,367$                  ‐$                         5,594$                   359,269$              50,000$                431,245$               

     Building Alterations

               820 ‐ Building Alterations Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        324,516$              550,000$              874,516$               

          Total Building Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        324,516$              550,000$              874,516$               

          Structural Projects

               805 ‐ Central Tile Maintenance & Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        50,357$                ‐$                       50,357$                 

               807 ‐ Washington Square Bldg Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        23,500$                ‐$                       23,500$                 

               809 ‐ Washington Square Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               809E ‐ Washington Square Exterior Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        290$                      ‐$                       290$                       

               821 ‐ Oshtemo Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        24,200$                ‐$                       24,200$                 

               822 ‐ Eastwood Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               822R ‐ Eastwood Branch Roof Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        144,825$              140,000$              284,825$               

               823R ‐ Oshtemo Branch Roof Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       700,000$              700,000$               

               828 ‐ Eastwood Building Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        19,440$                ‐$                       19,440$                 

               828H ‐ Eastwood Furnace Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        5,902$                   140,000$              145,902$               

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of September 2023

Page 1 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Monthly 

Activity

Monthly 

Encumbrances
Activity YTD

Carryover 

Balance

Preliminary 

Estimate 

Budget

Balance 

Remaining

3 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of September 2023

          Total Structural Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        268,514$              980,000$              1,248,514$           

          Mechanical Projects

               825 ‐ Central Chiller / Cooling tower ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        175,000$              ‐$                       175,000$               

               825O ‐ Central ONEplace Cooling tower ‐$                      ‐$                         25,295$                 25,845$                ‐$                       550$                       

               826 ‐ Central Steam Boiler ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        971,778$              ‐$                       971,778$               

               841 ‐ Central Louvers on AHU‐2 ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        45,000$                ‐$                       45,000$                 

               887 ‐ Generator, Central, Eastwood & Powell ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        75,000$                ‐$                       75,000$                 

               895 ‐ Central Freight Elevator ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               895PE ‐ Central Passenger Elevator ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        52,000$                ‐$                       52,000$                 

          Total Mechanical Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         25,295$                 1,344,623$           ‐$                       1,319,328$           

          Control & Security Systems

               827 ‐ Security Systems ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,807$                   ‐$                       4,807$                   

               827A ‐ Library Access Controls Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        61,615$                ‐$                       61,615$                 

               827D ‐ ADA Compliant Staff Doors 887$                     ‐$                         887$                       19,000$                ‐$                       18,113$                 

          Total Control & Security Systems 887$                     ‐$                         887$                       85,422$                ‐$                       84,535$                 

          Other Facilities Projects

               806 ‐ Central Restrooms ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        3,629$                   ‐$                       3,629$                   

               808 ‐ Dropbox Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        18,889$                ‐$                       18,889$                 

               811 ‐ Carpet Master Plan ‐ Central ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        256,923$              ‐$                       256,923$               

               811E ‐ Carpet Master Plan ‐ Eastwood ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        56,317$                ‐$                       56,317$                 

               811W ‐ Carpet Master Plan ‐ WSQ ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        54,270$                ‐$                       54,270$                 

               816a ‐ Library Space Study ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        82,500$                ‐$                       82,500$                 

               821C ‐ Oshtemo Courtyard Improvements ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        50,000$                ‐$                       50,000$                 

               821P ‐ Oshtemo Parking & Ramp Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        147,370$              ‐$                       147,370$               

               823 ‐ Oshtemo Building Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        98,109$                ‐$                       98,109$                 

               824 ‐ Eastwood Drop Ceiling ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               829 ‐ Central Building Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        22,577$                ‐$                       22,577$                 

               829L ‐ Central Exterior Lighting Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         7,800$                   8,500$                   ‐$                       700$                       

               829S ‐ Central Sewage Pump Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               892B ‐ Local History Digitization ‐ Bldg Alt ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               893 ‐  Vehicles ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               802 ‐ COVID‐Related Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               829V ‐ Van Duesen Renovations ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

          Total Other Facilities Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         7,800$                   799,084$              ‐$                       791,284$               

     Total Building Alterations 887$                     ‐$                         33,982$                 2,822,159$          1,530,000$          4,318,177$           

     Computer & Technology

               830 ‐ Computer & Technology Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        141,483$              60,000$                201,483$               

          Total Computer & Tech. Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         141,483$              60,000$                201,483$               

          Public Technology & Hardware

               831 ‐ Computer Equipment & Peripherals 4,483$                  ‐$                         8,962$                   16,233$                40,000$                47,271$                 

               843 ‐ Branch digital signage ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,443$                   ‐$                       4,443$                   

               844 ‐ USB Charging Stations ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               857 ‐ Selfcheck Upgrade Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,746$                   ‐$                       4,746$                   

               862 ‐ AV Enhancements ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        13,096$                ‐$                       13,096$                 

               865 ‐ Tech Innovation Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,115$                   ‐$                       1,115$                   

               884 ‐ Digital Lab (The Hub) Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         2,597$                   6,859$                   ‐$                       4,262$                   

               892A ‐ Local History Digitization ‐ Automation ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        8,676$                   ‐$                       8,676$                   

          Total Public Technology & Hardware 4,483$                  ‐$                         11,559$                 55,168$                40,000$                83,609$                 

          Portable Technology

               878 ‐ Portable Devices ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        11,209$                ‐$                       11,209$                 

          Total Portable Technology ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        11,209$                ‐$                       11,209$                 

          Other Tech/Computer Equipment  

Page 2 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Monthly 

Activity

Monthly 

Encumbrances
Activity YTD

Carryover 

Balance

Preliminary 

Estimate 

Budget

Balance 

Remaining

3 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of September 2023

               854 ‐ Other Tech/Computer Equipment ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   6,043$                   ‐$   6,043$  

               855 ‐ Communications Systems ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   210$   ‐$   210$  

               855PA ‐ KPL PA System Project ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   66,300$                ‐$   66,300$                 

               856 ‐ IT Infrastructure Projects ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   1,784$                   ‐$   1,784$  

               879 ‐ Office scanners ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

               898 ‐ Library of Things (Tech Related) ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

          Total Other Tech/Computer Equipment ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   74,337$                ‐$   74,337$                 

          RFID/Circulation

               852 ‐ RFID/ILS Equipment ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   262$   ‐$   262$  

          Total RFID/Circulation Tech. ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   262$   ‐$   262$  

     Total Computer & Technology 4,483$                  ‐$   11,559$                 282,459$              100,000$              370,900$               

‐$  

Total CIP Expenditures 6,737$                  ‐$   51,135$                 3,463,887$          1,680,000$          5,120,322$           

Draw on Specific CIP Reserve: Oshtemo Infrastructure Projects: (150,000)$            

Draw on Specific CIP Reserve: Eastwood Infrastructure Projects: (90,000)$              

Transfer to Specific CIP Reserve: Mobile LIbrary: 80,000$               

APPROVED BUDGETED CIP EXPENDITURES + TRANSFERS TO SPECIFIC CIP RESERVES: 1,520,000$         

          Transfers

               800 ‐CIP Transfers (from) Other Funds ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

               800 ‐CIP Transfers to Other Funds ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

     Total ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

Total Transfers ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (All Projects)   1,451,009$         

TOTAL NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ‐‐ All Projects   (6,737)$               

ENDING FUND BALANCE (All Projects)   1,444,272$         

Page 3 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Kalamazoo Public Library

Special Revenue Fund

Month of September 2023

Activity Encumbrances Activity YTD PEB Budget Left % Complete

Month of September

Revenue

          Local Support

               233 - Ready to Read - Gifts $20 $0 $462 $4,000 $3,538  11.6%

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $0 $0 $500 $5,000 $4,500  10.0%

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $300 $0 $300 $1,000 $700  30.0%

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $0 $155,000 $155,000  0.0%

               308 - Library Gifts $0 $0 $10 $1,000 $990  1.0%

               315C - AG Scholarship - KPL Funds $0 $0 $459 $0 ($459)  0.0%

               390 - Youth Services Gifts & Memorials $0 $0 $3,790 $0 ($3,790)  0.0%

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000 $0  100.0%

$320 $0 $10,521 $171,000 $160,479  6.2%          Total Local Support

          Other

               315 - Amanda Green Scholarship $0 $0 $0 $16,200 $16,200  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $80,462 $80,462  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 $96,662 $96,662  0.0%          Total Other Revenue

$320 $0 $10,521 $267,662 $257,141  3.9%Total Revenue

Expenditures

     Materials

          Adult Books

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000  0.0%          Total Adult Books

          Juvenile Books

               233 - Ready to Read - Gifts $4,727 $0 $4,757 $10,000 $5,243  47.6%

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $0 $0 $0 $500 $500  0.0%

$4,727 $0 $4,757 $10,500 $5,743  45.3%          Total Juvenile Books

$4,727 $0 $4,757 $11,500 $6,743  41.4%     Total

     Operating Expenses

          Misc. Operating Expenses

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $0 $0 $0 $4,500 $4,500  0.0%

               305 - Law Library Gifts $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000  0.0%

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $304 $0 $438 $0 ($438)  0.0%

               307 - ONEplace Nonprofit Services $0 $0 $0 $19,862 $19,862  0.0%

               308 - Library Gifts $483 $0 $520 $4,000 $3,480  13.0%

               310 - KPL Antiracism Transformation Tea $0 $0 $0 $3,000 $3,000  0.0%

               315 - Amanda Green Scholarship $0 $0 $0 $12,893 $12,893  0.0%

               315C - AG Scholarship - KPL Funds ($483) $0 $0 $0 $0  0.0%

               325 - Friends of KPL Grants $1,023 $0 $1,642 $5,000 $3,358  32.8%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $84,368 $84,368  0.0%

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 1 of 2



Kalamazoo Public Library

Special Revenue Fund

Month of September 2023

Activity Encumbrances Activity YTD PEB Budget Left % Complete

Month of September

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $22,159 $33,800 $11,641  65.6%

$1,327 $0 $24,758 $169,423 $144,665  14.6%          Total Misc. Operating Expenses

$1,327 $0 $24,758 $169,423 $144,665  14.6%     Total

     Other Expenditures

          Programming

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $2,325 $0 $8,832 $125,000 $116,168  7.1%

$2,325 $0 $8,832 $125,000 $116,168  7.1%          Total Programming

          Travel & Conference

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $577 $0 ($577)  0.0%

$0 $0 $577 $0 ($577)  0.0%          Total Travel & Conference

$2,325 $0 $9,408 $125,000 $115,592  7.5%     Total

$8,380 $0 $38,924 $305,923 $266,999  12.7%Total

Transfers

     Transfers In

          Transfers from other funds

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $0 ($20,000) ($20,000)  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 ($20,000) ($20,000)  0.0%     Total Transfers In

     Transfers Out

          Transfers to other funds

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $0 $104,054 $104,054  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $68,930 $68,930  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 $172,984 $172,984  0.0%     Total

$0 $0 $0 $152,984 $152,984  0.0%Total

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 2 of 2



2 of 12

Statement Period

September 1-30, 2023KALAMAZOO PUB LIBRARY ENDWMNT

Schwab One® Account of

i

Asset Allocation
This Period Current Allocation

Cash and Cash Investments 500,652.63 8%

Fixed Income 507,116.84 9%

Equities 2,169,317.14 37%

Exchange Traded Funds 2,722,092.75 46%

Total $5,899,179.36 100%

i

Income Summary
This Period YTD

Federal Tax Status Tax-Exempt Taxable Tax-Exempt Taxable

Schwab One®
Interest

0.00 141.04 0.00 141.04

Cash Dividends 0.00 8,945.87 0.00 8,945.87

Total Income $0.00 $9,086.91 $0.00 $9,086.91

i

Margin Loan Information
Opening Margin
Loan Balance

Closing Margin
Loan Balance

Funds Available
to Withdraw *

Securities

$0.00 $0.00 $3,270,978.63 $6,541,958.00

Margin Loan Rates
Vary by Balance
11.75% - 13.57%
* Values include any cash plus the amount available using margin borrowing.
For more information about the margin feature, please visit schwab.com/margin.

A Message About Your Account
Welcome
Your new Schwab statement was designed to help you find your account and investment information quickly. Please visit schwab.com/statement to view our How-to Guide, which will walk
you through the features on your new statement. (1023-3UCK)

Positions - Summary
Beginning
Value as of +

Transfer of
Securities(In/Out) +

Dividends
Reinvested + Cash Activity +

Change in
Market Value =

Ending Value
as of 09/30 Cost Basis

Unrealized
Gain/(Loss)

$0.00 $5,547,163.53 $0.00 $500,652.63 ($148,636.80) $5,899,179.36 $4,761,039.73 i $576,174.20 i

Values may not reflect all of your gains/losses; Schwab has provided accurate gain and loss information wherever possible for most investments. Cost basis may be incomplete or unavailable for some of your holdings
and may change or be adjusted in certain cases. Statement information should not be used for tax preparation, instead refer to official tax documents. For additional information refer to Terms and Conditions.



VIII.A. 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Director’s Report 
October 2023 

 

From the Interim Director: 

Core Values 

• We are committed to excellence in programs, services, and collections  
• We are community-focused  
• We are committed to and intentional about equity and anti-racism  
• We have safe, beautiful, and comfortable spaces  
• We are committed to continuous improvement and innovation  
• We have a passionate, engaged, knowledgeable, and creative staff  

 

Strategic Priorities 

• Strengthening Organizational Health 
• Advancing Equity and Inclusion: Library Services for All in our Diverse Community 
• Inspiring Literacy, Learning, and Engagement  

 

1. The library received a generous donation of $32,000 from Friends of Kalamazoo Public Library.  
Portions of this donation will be used to sponsor the Ready to Read/Great Adult Spelling Bee 
and a youth writing contest and the remaining is undesignated.  The library is grateful for the 
ongoing support of Friends of KPL! 

Strengthening Organization Health 

2. The Challenge Response Task Force attended a valuable training provided by Library Journal and 
School Library Journal—Censorship and Banned Books: How to Defend Intellectual Freedom. 
What we learned will inform how we move forward in our work.  

 
3. Jill Lansky and Michael Cockrell attended the annual MERS Retirement Conference in Detroit.  

Reports on the informational sessions were shared with MERS staff participants. 
 

4. The Professional Development Committee is planning the 2023 Staff Day for Thursday, 
December 7, 2023.  This will be the first in-person staff in-service day since 2019.  The 
committee is working to finalize the agenda which will be conference-style with keynote 
speakers and breakout sessions.  The focus will be on professional development for all staff in 
addition to opportunities for team-building, personal enrichment and fun. 
 



VIII.A. 
 

2 
 

5. KPL is excited and honored to be hosting the reception for the 2023 Michigan Library 
Association Annual Conference on October 19, 6:30-9:30 pm. We expect almost 300 library 
workers and vendors from all over the state to enjoy food and activities on all levels of Central. 
The conference is being held at the Radisson Plaza Hotel, October 18-20 and a few KPL will be 
presenting. 

 

Advancing Equity and Inclusion:  Library Services for All in Our Diverse Community 

6. To celebrate Hispanic Heritage Month, YS created a bulletin board complete with paper picado 
and book covers of excellent Hispanic/Latino books. We have also kept a display of books well 
stocked throughout the month.   

 
7. Ryan Gage in Local History shared this great story about Security Officer, Terrence Lipsey. “I just 

wanted to pass along something I witnessed on Friday while on the Reference Desk. I hope that 
you will pass this along to Teachout administrators. A couple came into the library to get a 
library card, and the gentleman was not wearing shoes. He claimed the shoes he was holding in 
his hands were “killing his feet”. Terrence told the gentleman to wait while he left the first floor, 
returning a few minutes later with two pairs of basketball shoes (they looked like expensive 
Nike’s), giving the patron one of the pairs. I was moved by the kindness Terrence showed for the 
patron, and the patron was very thankful. I’m always impressed with Terrence’s very chill, poised 
demeanor in the face of challenging circumstances. I just wanted to recognize this example of 
compassion for our patrons.” Thank you, Terrence, for practicing trauma-informed care when 
dealing with patrons.  

 
 

Inspiring Literacy, Learning and Engagement 

8. Banned Book Week, October 1-7, was a HUGE success! Hundreds of people attended one or all 
of the three events highlighted that week. The events included Black Out Poetry on October 2 at 
the Eastwood Branch, Banned Book Week Panel on October 3 at the Oshtemo Branch, and the 
Read Out and Rock Out featuring Bitch and Crys Matthews on October 6 at the Old Dog Tavern. 
The concert was an amazing event with over 200 people hearing nine staff and community 
members read from banned or challenged books and watching fabulous performances from two 
amazing talents! 

 
9. The 2024 Reading Together title has been selected by a community vote for the first time. 

Yellowface by R.F. Kuang won the vote, and the author will be talking to our patrons on March 
23, 3:00 pm. This will be the first time the author talk will be on a Saturday, which was a 
suggestion in the most recent survey. More details will to come. 

 
10. There are some changes coming to our Kanopy streaming video service on Nov. 1, 2023. On that 

day Kanopy will switch from the current credit system to a ticket system with each ticket 
representing a $1 cost to the library. KPL patrons will be allotted 30 tickets per account per 
month to “spend” however they choose on Kanopy content. All Kanopy titles will clearly indicate 
how many tickets each title will cost. There will not be any content changes associated with this 
update and all of the same great titles will continue to be available to our patrons on Kanopy.  



VIII.A. 
 

3 
 

 
11. Oshtemo recently hosted the first Café Reads book club. This is a new multigenerational book 

club – with three generations present at the first one where we discussed the memoir Educated 
by Tara Westover. The next book in this cycle will discuss Love Radio in preparation for Ebony 
LaDelle’s visit to Kalamazoo as part of the Youth Literature Seminar.  

 
12. The Washington Square Branch is participating in an artist installation called EYES ON: Edison 

that aims to bring some attention to the Edison Neighborhood. Artist Sabine Ledieu is putting up 
large, colorful paintings of eyes, one of which is installed on the chain link fence by the 
southwest corner of the library.  In her artist statement, she writes, “Our eyes are bridges 
leading towards imagination pathways helping us to open creative windows.  EYES ON 
encourages public awareness, awakening, seeing anew, emergence from another place into the 
now.  Intended as an impetus for conversations about issues that require some eyes on 
them….  What do you see with EYES ON: Edison?”  Other local artists are joining in and placing 
their eye creations.  Keep your eyes open for eyes popping up when you are in the Edison 
Neighborhood.  
 

13. The summer at Eastwood was busy! Branch Manager, Judi Rambow reports, “We had a great 
summer! It was lively and busy with lots of coming and going. Now we hope that the kids are 
back in school working hard to stay ahead. Although Eastwood has quieted down, we’ve been 
seeing successful fall programs. Milan’s Ready Readers Creatures Club is a fun way to get 
kids from grades 1-3 reading and experience a visit from a live animal or insect from Kalamazoo 
Nature Center. We’ve had great attendance at Sarah’s Creativebug Craft programs. All 
ages enjoy making cool crafts that are practical with easy-to-understand instructions. We have 
been offering Senior Citizen programs that have brought long absent or never before Seniors to 
Eastwood. Ladies from the Eastwood Neighborhood Association came to our Senior Citizen 
Breakfast. We made plans to share information and for the association to hold meetings in our 
community room. The Breakfasts are continuing with the hope of making more 
connections and finding what Seniors need.” 

 
14. First grade visits continued in September at all library locations. It is a great time to engage with 

the teachers and connect with the students. Students enjoy a story time and the opportunity to 
select their “just right fit” book to bring back to their classroom.  
 

15. The Dungeon and Dragons League had two sessions in September, and added two more teens to 
the league, bumping the group to 6 kids. 
 

16. Laura Bultman planned and ran the Bluey Party which was a huge success and a lot of fun. 
Activities included crafts, games, a scavenger hunt, and a section with several cozy coupes to roll 
around in. It was a blast! Many thanks to the staff who helped set up and to those who helped 
run the stations.   

 
17. Sept. 28 was National Good Neighbor Day. All locations participated. In the Children’s Room, we 

laid out the large, colorable poster board we received from MAC, offered a free giveaway book, 
and hosted a card making station. 



VIII.A. 
 

4 
 

18. Fall children’s programming began at Central. Move & Groove for preschoolers continues to 
grow and though Creation Lab for elementary kids got a slow start, it has now become several 
families’ go-to Thursday afternoon activity.   

 
19. Laura Bultman ran a Rock Your Locker program in the Teen Studio at Central where participants 

created decorations and fun accessories for their lockers.   
 

20. September was the first meeting of the Ready Readers Creature Club. Kids were encouraged to 
take turns reading out loud about an animal, and then got the chance to meet a live animal 
ambassador from the Kalamazoo Nature Center.  

 
21. With the help of Waneta Hodges, Amanda Stover got an agency library card set up for Kazoo 

School. Amanda S will pull books on a variety of requested topics, check the books out to the 
school, and deliver them on a regular basis.  

 
22. Along with the new school year comes a return to regularly scheduled outreach to youth 

organizations in the Eastwood neighborhood. Milan O visits Eastside Youth Strong, Seeds 
Learning Center, Pre-K International, among others. 

 
23. Milan Orozco started up a weekly story time at Eastwood for children ages birth to 5. 

 
24. Natalie Isham hosted two yoga classes at the Kalamazoo Covenant Academy in September. Over 

a dozen kids attended each session. The hope is to continue to promote wellness among the 
students who have suffered considerable trauma and do not have equitable access.  
 

25. Amanda Stover, Asia Haywood, Brianna Jackson, and Sandra Farag attended the KYDNet Kick-Off 
at Honor Credit Union in Kalamazoo. The session featured a presentation from the Michigan 
Department of Education regarding a grant for out-of-school time organizations. KYDNet 
meetings are also a great place to learn about the amazing work that other organizations in 
Kalamazoo are doing for youth. 

 
26. Milan Orozco and Kiersten Jouppi joined the Library of Michigan Wonder Media Literacy 

Advisory Cohort and participated in a focus group evaluating the Wonder Media exhibit at the 
Kalamazoo Valley Museum. They are planning to adapt the exhibit into several library programs 
over the next coming months. 

 
27. Amanda Stover and Theo Gill will be evaluating the All-In bag collection and determining what 

titles and toys to replace. They are also looking into adding a few new bags with new themes.  
 

28. Abbey Flentje restarted the OSH Talk, Read, Sing playgroup this month and continued the Tween 
Graphic Novel Club.   
 

29. The first Banned Book Club was held in September, for middle through high schoolers and their 
caregivers. We did have a few parents attend with their kids, as well as some solo regulars. The 
decision was made, after discussing with caregivers, to move the time and day beginning in 
December 2023, to accommodate scheduling. 
 



VIII.A. 
 

5 
 

30. Kiersten Jouppi held their first Fall Bujo and Chill program. It was well attended by young adults 
and teens. 
 

31. The Tile Coaster program was presented once for elementary school children and again for 
teens at the Oshtemo branch.  Both events were well attended. 
 

32. Brianna Jackson, with the help of Natalie Isham, Kyle VanKrimpen, and Lauren Yowell, organized 
and led the Milwood Magnet Middle School 6th grade visits. Students were provided with 
information about Teen services, given a tour of CEN, and were able to take home a free book, 
and some KPL Teen-specific swag. 

 
33. Abbey Flentje coordinated the Llamas in the Library event on September 23. Three llamas came 

to the OSH courtyard, where they met approximately 150 people in a two-hour timespan. Llama 
crafts were available in the Children's Room, including designing your own llama ears, coloring 
pages, word searches, and button making. 

 
34. Brianna Jackson hosted Anime in the Afternoon at Central every Wednesday in September; it 

continues to be a well-attended program. We recently finished Mashle: Magic and Muscles, 
which revolves around Mash Burndead, a non-magical character who makes his way through 
magic school with brawns alone. We also started, and are almost finished with Sailor Moon 
Crystal, a well-known. 

 
35. Kiersten Jouppi continued to go to the K Central High School Book Club; they are reading Perks 

of Being a Wallflower to start off the year 
 

36. Zoey, a therapy dog, came to OSH to do an afternoon of reading with kids. Kids had the 
opportunity to take home the book they chose to read to Zoey. 

 
37. Brianna Jackson hosted a Perler Beads program CEN, EAS, POW, and WSQ during the month of 

September. Perler beads are small, plastic beads that you arrange on a pegboard to form a 
design. Then, using an iron and wax paper, you melt the beads together. When they're cool, you 
have your design! 

 
38. As part of the committee role for Youth Services Advisory Council (YSAC), Jill L helped facilitate 

the quarterly MiYouth meeting in September with the Library of Michigan. Topics this quarter 
included back to school, MI Right to Read, and video game checkouts. 

 
39. Brianna Jackson hosted the first every Blacklight Sip and Paint at CEN in the Teen Studio on 

9/23. The room was completely dark, with black lights spread throughout the space. Teens were 
provided with their own canvases, and neon paint so that their creations glowed in the dark.  

 
40. Jill Lansky and Brianna Jackson attended the 4th Annual Beyond the Backpack: School Readiness 

Fair (hosted by Collaboration Kalamazoo) on 9/9 at Bronson Park, to help students prepare to go 
back to school. We gave away books to all youth, provided KPL swag, and made buttons! 

 
41. Andrea Vernola coordinated an author visit with King-Westwood and Indian Prairie Elementaries 

on Friday, September 29. Author Julie Buchholtz shared her debut picture book, some Ojibwe 
words, Michigander connections, and discussions of history, identity, and belonging with over 



VIII.A. 
 

6 
 

100 students. Buchholtz is a Michigander and proud member of Bay Mills Indian Tribe a 
federally recognized tribe comprised of Ojibwe people that is located in the Upper Peninsula of 
Michigan. Many thanks to the staff at both schools and to KPS Librarian Terri Luzenske who 
make these partnerships possible and mutually wonderful. Many thanks to the Oshtemo aides 
who decorated the branch with beautiful art inspired by the book. On Saturday morning, Julie 
hosted one more public visit for families at the Oshtemo Branch. Julie shared her story and 
everyone created ‘identity sunflowers’ to take home reminding us all how special we each are. 

 
42. Sandra Farag presented at the annual KPS Principal meeting. She provided a high-level view of 

what Youth Services could provide for their staff and students. Sandra followed up with most of 
the principals with regards to welcoming their first graders to their neighborhood libraries.  

 
43. Sandra Farag attended the Kalamazoo Literacy Council Parent Literacy Forum. It was great to 

meet other community leaders and discuss how we can extend our reach to those families who 
need us.  
 

44. The Idea Lab has expanded hours and is open Monday through Friday from 12 PM to 6 PM and 
Saturdays from 10 AM to 5 PM. That's an extra 17 hours of Idea Lab goodness every week, and 
it's a better fit with our regular operating hours. If you peek at the stats from July and August, 
computer usage was hanging around in the 70s and 80s. But come September, we had a 
whopping 160! 
 

45. Technology Services just added an 8mm/Super 8 to digital film converter to our digitization 
stations. All the other equipment was part of Local History as recently as April, but we've 
absorbed that service into the Idea Lab for the foreseeable future. So, if you've got any old films 
or memories you want to bring into the digital age, we've got you covered.  
 

46. 3D printing service is buzzing; making 146 objects for our patrons since August, with a whopping 
77 of them created in that month alone. Plus, our Idea Lab classes are making a buzz, covering 
topics like Photoshop, Music Production, Lightroom, and Illustrator. These classes are offered 
nearly every week and are drawing in more interested folks. 
 

47. Our most recent Retro Game Night was a hit with 26 participants – our largest turnout ever! On 
a regular basis, our VR nights usually see 2-5 participants, but we're hoping to shake things up. 
Don't forget, Geek Fest is right around the corner, and we're bringing a Super Smash Bros. 
tournament, VR experiences, and even a 3D printing station with some handy handouts to 
showcase our video game and Idea Lab services.  

48. ONEplace is excited to share an update about the Kolbe Index A that has been used as a 
strategy/tool to support local Nonprofit leaders in operating in their strengths!  The Kolbe A 
Index (Instinct Test) is unique. It does not measure intelligence, personality, or social style. It 
measures the instinctive ways you take action when you strive. Your custom Kolbe A Index 
Results can be relied upon in supporting you to be more productive, less stressed, and unlock 
joy at work or with your family.  



VIII.A. 
 

7 
 

49. Stacy Jackson, Programming Manager for ONEplace was certified in May 2021 to use this tool 
specifically for our Emerging Leader Academy, with the intention of a personal development 
opportunity that will overflow into the work environment experience.  We recognized its value 
and extended access to our Peer Learning Group and made it available to other nonprofit 
organization staff.  As of this update, 85 community leaders, including most of the KPL 
Leadership team and Youth Services Team have completed their Kolbe A index!  Stacy will be 
attending Kolbecon later this month. 

50. A fantastic new article detailing and celebrating the quiet, yet mighty accomplishments of 
Forrest M. Hill was added to the Kalamazoo History section of the Local History website. The 
article speaks of Hill’s strength of character and lasting impact on Kalamazoo, including the 
impetus for the creating of the Douglas Community Center.  

 



FY	2018 FY	2019 FY	2020 FY	2021 FY	2022 FY	2023

50K

100K

150K

200K

Ch
ec

ko
ut

s

111,327 109,657
177,710

95,656 94,493 94,730

September	Total	Circ	last	5	FYs

ILS
Overdrive
Hoopla
Freegal
LinkedIn	Learn
Kanopy
CreativeBug
Grand	Total 124,237

234
990
106

2,373
11,183
14,621
94,730

117,785
13

129
1,529
9,754

11,867
94,493

116,743
88

14
1,816
8,243

10,926
95,656

199,936

4,575
8,011
9,640

177,710

127,376

3,641
5,420
8,658

109,657

128,502

4,104
5,429
7,642

111,327

July August September

Cr
ea

ti
ve

Bu
g

Fr
ee

ga
l

H
oo

pl
a

IL
S

Ka
no

py

Li
nk

ed
In

	L
ea

rn

O
ve

rd
ri

ve

Cr
ea

ti
ve

Bu
g

Fr
ee

ga
l

H
oo

pl
a

IL
S

Ka
no

py

Li
nk

ed
In

	L
ea

rn

O
ve

rd
ri

ve

Cr
ea

ti
ve

Bu
g

Fr
ee

ga
l

H
oo

pl
a

IL
S

Ka
no

py

Li
nk

ed
In

	L
ea

rn

O
ve

rd
ri

ve

0K

50K

100K

150K

Ch
ec

ko
ut

s 10
3,

02
3

11
,0

51

15
,3

04

2,
06

4

75
6

95 62

10
3,

90
0

11
,4

20

15
,4

09

2,
74

7

20
1

80
8

12
4 11

,1
83

94
,7

30

14
,6

21

2,
37

3

23
4

99
0

10
6

FY	2023	YTD	Total	Circ

Source

FY	2023

July August September

Grand	Total

CreativeBug
Freegal
Hoopla
ILS
Kanopy
LinkedIn	Learn
Overdrive
Grand	Total 124,237

14,621
106
990

94,730
11,183

2,373
234

134,609
15,409

124
808

103,900
11,420

2,747
201

132,355
15,304

62
756

103,023
11,051

2,064
95

391,201
45,334

292
2,554

301,653
33,654
7,184

530

FY	2023
September

CENTRAL DIGITAL EASTWOOD MOBILELIB OSHTEMO POWELL WASHSQUA..

0K

10K

20K

30K

Ch
ec

ko
ut

s 14,621

11,183

16,752
13,936

1,292 2,0066042

Checkouts	by	Library

Source
Overdrive
Hoopla
ILS
Freegal
Kanopy
LinkedIn	Learn
Creative	Bug



FY	2019 FY	2020 FY	2021 FY	2022 FY	2023

0K

10K

20K

30K

Ch
ec

ko
ut

s 11,183

10,926 11,867 14,621

3,641

4,575

5,420
8,011 8,243

9,754

8,658 9,640

September	Digital	Checkouts

Source

CreativeBug

Freegal

Hoopla

Kanopy

LinkedIn	Learn

Overdrive

Grand	Total 29,507

14,621

106

990

11,183

2,373

234

23,292

11,867

129

9,754

1,529

13

21,087

10,926

14

8,243

1,816

88

22,226

9,640

8,011

4,575

17,719

8,658

5,420

3,641

July August September

Cr
ea

ti
ve

Bu
g

Fr
ee

ga
l

H
oo

pl
a

Ka
no

py

Li
nk

ed
In

	L
ea

rn

O
ve

rd
ri

ve

Cr
ea

ti
ve

Bu
g

Fr
ee

ga
l

H
oo

pl
a

Ka
no

py

Li
nk

ed
In

	L
ea

rn

O
ve

rd
ri

ve

Cr
ea

ti
ve

Bu
g

Fr
ee

ga
l

H
oo

pl
a

Ka
no

py

Li
nk

ed
In

	L
ea

rn

O
ve

rd
ri

ve

0K
5K

10K

15K

Ch
ec

ko
ut

s

11,051

15,304

2,064 75695 62

11,420

15,409

2,747
201 808 124

11,183
14,621

2,373
234 990 106

FY	2023	YTD	Digital	Checkouts

Source July August September Grand	Total
CreativeBug

Freegal

Hoopla

Kanopy

LinkedIn	Learn

Overdrive

Grand	Total 29,507

14,621

106

990

11,183

2,373

234

30,709

15,409

124

808

11,420

2,747

201

29,332

15,304

62

756

11,051

2,064

95

89,548

45,334

292

2,554

33,654

7,184

530

Source
CreativeBug Freegal Hoopla Kanopy LinkedIn	Learn Overdrive



0K

50K

100K

150K

Co
un

t	o
f	C

ir
c_

St
at

s

60,382 60,400

95,885

50,928 49,593

29,521 29,861
59,517

35,034 34,309

September	Transactions	by	Library

Library FY	2019 FY	2020 FY	2021 FY	2022 FY	2023

CENTRAL
EASTWOOD
MOBILELIB
OSHTEMO
POWELL
WASHSQUARE
Grand	Total 94,730

5,153
1,327

35,809
18

3,642
48,781

94,493
4,700
1,684

34,309
306

3,901
49,593

95,656
4,415
1,454

35,034
2

3,820
50,928

177,710
11,641
3,764

59,517

6,903
95,885

109,657
8,713
4,777

29,861

5,906
60,400

July August September

CE
N

TR
AL

EA
ST

W
O

O
D

M
O

BI
LE

LI
B

O
SH

TE
M

O

PO
W

EL
L

W
AS

H
SQ

U
AR

E

CE
N

TR
AL

EA
ST

W
O

O
D

M
O

BI
LE

LI
B

O
SH

TE
M

O

PO
W

EL
L

W
AS

H
SQ

U
AR

E

CE
N

TR
AL

EA
ST

W
O

O
D

M
O

BI
LE

LI
B

O
SH

TE
M

O

PO
W

EL
L

W
AS

H
SQ

U
AR

E

0K

20K

40K

Co
un

t	o
f

Ci
rc

_S
ta

ts

FY	2023		YTD	Circ	by	Library

Library Circ	Comm.. July August September Grand	Total
CENTRAL Checkouts

Holds
Renewals

EASTWOOD Checkouts
Holds
Renewals

MOBILELIB Checkouts
Holds
Renewals

OSHTEMO Checkouts
Holds
Renewals

POWELL Checkouts
Holds
Renewals

WASHSQUARE Checkouts
Holds
Renewals

Grand	Total

27,588
4,441

16,752

30,809
4,688

18,327

30,162
4,956

18,333

88,559
14,085
53,412

2,027
323

1,292

2,174
298

1,409

2,071
312

1,692

6,272
933

4,393

12
4
2

18
1
2

71 101
5
4

18,515
3,358

13,936

19,609
3,021

16,400

18,451
3,429

17,072

56,575
9,808

47,408

688
35

604

721
68

700

517
39

656

1,926
142

1,960

2,632
515

2,006

2,884
577

2,194

2,745
630

1,887

8,261
1,722
6,087

94,730103,900103,023 301,653

Circ	Comm.. Checkouts Holds Renewals

Item	Demograpichs
All



Library	of	Things	(LOT)

July August September

0

200

400

600

N
um

be
r	o

f	C
he

ck
ou

ts 282
255

247

176
181 171

133
96 88

79

FY	2023		YTD	Circ	LOT

July August September Grand	Total

ARTSCRAFTS

GAMES

HOME

RECREATION

TECHNOLOGY

TOOLS

Grand	Total 1,982

90

317

193

528

784

70

609

27

88

49

171

247

27

647

29

96

65

181

255

21

726

34

133

79

176

282

22

Categories
GAMES HOME TECHNOLOGY RECREATION TOOLS ARTSCRAFTS



July August September

0K

10K

20K

30K

In
	C

ou
nt

9,736
Oshtemo

9,560
Oshtemo

19,073
Central

19,546
Central 17,434

Central

FY	2023	YTD	Library	Visits	by	Library

Library
September

FY	2019 FY	2020 FY	2021 FY	2022 FY	2023

Central

Eastwood

Oshtemo

Powell

Washington

Grand	Total 29,777

2,278

1,263

7,804

998

17,434

27,922

1,780

1,528

7,530

1,303

15,781

21,226

1,148

668

6,349

885

12,176

21,231

1,318

808

7,195

814

11,096

44,712

3,387

3,598

8,950

1,866

26,911

July August September

0K

10K

20K

30K

40K

Vi
si

to
rs

34,514 34,981
29,777

FY	2023		YTD	Library	Visits

Library July August September Grand	Total
Central
Oshtemo
Washington
Powell
Eastwood
Grand	Total 29,777

998
1,263
2,278
7,804

17,434

34,981
1,302
2,058
2,515
9,560

19,546

34,514
1,493
1,978
2,234
9,736

19,073

99,272
3,793
5,299
7,027

27,100
56,053

FY	2020 FY	2021 FY	2022 FY	2023

5K
10K

15K

In
	C

ou
nt

September

Library Central Eastwood Oshtemo Powell Washington



Central East Washington Year to Prior Year %
Agency Library wood Mobile Oshtemo Powell Square Total Date to Date Change
BOOKS
     -Adult 17,445 767 124 12,057 383 1,733 32,509 100,227 104,087 -4%
     -eBook 9,529 9,529 30,805 28,487 8%
    -Digital Magazine 2,254 2,254 5,870 1,996 194%
Teen 3,134 175 2 1,409 93 215 5,028 17,264 17,359 -1%
Juvenile 14,560 1,264 1 15,958 269 1,071 33,123 105,378 106,875 -1%
Total 46,922 2,206 127 29,424 745 3,019 82,443 259,544 258,804 0%

 
AUDIO-VISUAL  
Audiobook
     -CD 684 47 0 679 92 37 1,539 5,384 5,874 -8%
     -Digital  12,634 12,634 38,455 31,373 23%
Music
     -CD 1,103 12 0 376 23 21 1,535 4,472 4,809 -7%
    -Digital  2,758 2,758 8,244 6,917 19%
Video  
     -DVD 11,547 1,344 1 5,097 460 2,049 20,498 67,057 67,497 -1%
    - Digital 883 883 2,758 3,400 -19%
Wi-Fi Hotspots 0
Library of Things 308 33 1 233 7 27 609 1,982 1,749 13%
Total Non-Print Material 29,917 1,436 2 6,385 582 2,134 40,456 128,352 121,619 6%
Total Circulation 76,839 3,642 129 35,809 1,327 5,153 122,899 387,896 380,423 2%

Computer Usage 
Onsite Computer Use 3,341 149 0 495 116 311 4,412 14,278 13,087 9%
WIFI Users 0 0 0 0

Website
     Visits 85,600 85,600 240,686 281,230 -14%
    Unique Visitors 60,200 60,200 162,870 193,426 -16%

Library Cards
  -New Registrations 246 27 26 136 15 28 478 1,391 1,541 -10%
  -Online Registrations 133 0 133 494 468 6%
  -Total Card Holders 0

KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARY
LIBRARY STATISTICS
September 30, 2023



Central East Washington Year to Prior Year %
Library wood Mobile Oshtemo Powell Square Total Date to Date Change

Database Statistics
    Sessions
     -MeL  & Other Databases 18 18 139 225 -38%
     -Local History 418 418 1,149 519 121%
     -LinkedIn Learning 106 106 240 1,200 -80%
     -CreativeBug 292 292 588 44 1236%
Total Database Sessions 834 0 0 0 0 0 834 2,116 1,988 6%

   Searches
     -MeL  & Other Databases 667 667 3,214 1,187 171%
     -Local History 5,397 5,397 13,995 6,606 112%
     -Law Library 217 217 775 0

Total Database Searches 6,281 0 0 0 0 0 6,281 17,984 7,793 131%

Law Library
  -Visitors 140 140 497 631 -21%
  -Phone Calls 61 61 230 320 -28%
  -Questions Answered 213 213 664 788 -16%

Library visits by location 17,434 998 0 7,804 1,263 2,278 29,777 99,272 88,770 12%

Books Distributed 
  -Ready to Read 3,535 3,535 7,685 4,480 72%
  -Via Mail 207 207 1,024 861 19%
  -MelCat 2,026 2,026 6,365 6,452 -1%

KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARY
LIBRARY STATISTICS
September 30, 2023



 Central East Washington Year to Prior Year %
Agency Library wood Mobile Oshtemo Powell Square Total Date to Date Change

 
Onsite Events  
   Adult Events     1 0 0 1 2 0 4 29 14 107%
    Attendance      9 0 0 5 44 0 58 300 118 154%
   Teen Events 6 0 0 1 0 0 7 44 31 42%
    Attendance 50 0 0 1 0 0 51 285 250 14%
   Birth-5 Events 5 3 0 7 0 5 20 64 43 49%
   Birth-5 Attendance 127 11 0 177 0 26 341 1,582 1,054 50%
    6-11 Events 7 2 0 4 5 3 21 80 56 43%
    6-11Attendance 248 52 0 115 121 132 668 2,339 1,336 75%
Total Onsite Events 19 5 0 13 7 8 52 217 144 51%
Total Onsite Attendance 434 63 0 298 165 158 1,118 4,506 2,758 63%

Outreach Events 
   Adult    1 0 7 1 0 1 10 27 32 -16%
    Attendance      155 0 168 9 0 9 341 1,369 796 72%
   Teen 3 0 0 0 0 1 4 7 6 17%
    Attendance 302 0 0 0 0 123 425 583 791 -26%
   Birth-5 Events 1 1 1 0 4 4 11 16 18 -11%
   Birth-5 Attendance 11 26 95 0 59 90 281 388 469 -17%
   6-11 Events 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 29 15 93%
   6-11Attendance 0 0 0 0 0 55 55 2,486 1,611 54%
Total Outreach Events 5 1 8 1 4 9 28 79 71 11%
Outreach Events Attendance 468 26 263 9 59 277 1,102 4,826 3,667 32%

PROGRAM STATISTICS
Onsite/Outreach Events

September 30, 2023



 Central East Washington Year to Prior Year %
Agency Library wood Mobile Oshtemo Powell Square Total Date to Date Change

Live Online Events 
   Adult    13 0 0 0 0 0 13 27 23 17%
    Attendance      297 0 0 0 0 0 297 718 526 37%
   Teen 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    Attendance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    Juvenile 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    Attendance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Live Online Events 13 0 0 0 0 0 13 27 23 17%
Total Live Online Attendance 297 0 0 0 0 0 297 718 526 37%

Recorded Online Events
    Adult    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 -100%
Views 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 176 -100%
    Teen 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 -100%
Views 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,936 -100%
    Juvenile 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Views 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Recorded Online Events 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 -100%
Total Recorded Online Views 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,112 -100%

Total New Events 37 6 8 14 11 17 93 323 264 22%
Total New Events Attendance & 1,199 89 263 307 224 435 2,517 10,050 10,063 0%
 KPL TV Total Monthly Views 104,072 104,072 104,072 228,507 -54%

September 30, 2023

PROGRAM STATISTICS
Live Online/Recorded Online Events



RECOVERY INSTITUTE OF SOUTHWEST MICHIGAN 
123  South Westnedge, Kalamazoo, MI 49007 

269.343.6725  www.recoverymi.org 
 
 

Kalamazoo Public Library Peer Navigation Report 
September 1, 2023 – September 30, 2023 

 

Excerpts from Staff Shift Log: 

Talked with a peer that was leaving for treatment.  We discussed what to do after treatment.  Goal setting and plans 

I talked with a patron about music and how it helps our wellness 
 
I helped a staff member with information on housing 
 
I shared information with 3 patrons about housing 
 
I had a pleasant discussion with a patron about how our groups have taken god out of recovery 
 
I met a peer who was struggling with boundaries. set a couple short term goals and the peer left happy 
 

 



  
 

2 
 

  

Total Contacts September:  29 

Total Contacts August: 44 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

Addiction Treatment Referral

Employment Referral

Mental Health Referral

Physical Healthcare Referral

Education - Peer Support

Employment - Peer Support

Homecare - Peer Support

Food Assistance Referral

Recovery Planning (Goals, PCP)

Housing Referral

Physical Wellness - Peer Support

Introduction/ Initial Engagement

Social or Emotional - Peer Support

Type of Support August & September (percentage) 

August September


	Board  Agenda 10.23.23
	PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA

	Board Minutes 9.18.23
	Board Minutes 9.25.23
	Financial Report Cover October 23
	KPL Sept 2023 Financials
	Director Report October 2023
	Circulation Transactions (2)
	StatsRJul 23-Jun 24 electronic  (2)
	Sept 2023

	RI - Peer Navigator Report - KPL - 10.09.2023



